
CITY OF DAPHNE 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

MAY 5, 2014 

6:30 P.M. 

  

                                                                              
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION /  Pastor Stuart Davidson / Eastern Shore Baptist Church  

  

 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:       Council meeting minutes / April 21, 2014 

                                                      Emergency Special Called Council meeting minutes / April 25, 2014  

                                                                                       

CONGRATULATIONS:    Bayside Academy Chess Team / Alabama State Champions 

 

PROCLAMATION:    “National Police Week” / May 11-17, 2014 

 

PROCLAMATION:    “National Safe Boating Week” / May 17-23, 2014 

 

PROCLAMATION:    “Public Works Week”  / May 18-24, 2014 

 

                                                         

 4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE - Conaway        

   Review minutes / April 21
st
  

    1.)  Ordinances: 

          a.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Recreation HVAC / Ordinance 2014-20 

                    b.)    Cancellation of: Website Integration for Animal Shelter & Library Donation     

                           and Close the Credit Card Donation Bank Account / Ordinance 2014-21 

                  c.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Hazardous Weather / Emergency Duty Pay during the  

                          January 2014 Ice Storm / Ordinance 2014-22 

 

          2.)   Resolutions: 
                   a.)   Bid Award:  Concrete Pipe / Design Precast & Pipe / Resolution 2014-19 

                   b.)   Bid Award:  Plastic Pipe / Ferguson Waterworks / Resolution 2014-20 

                   c.)   Bid Award :  Rock / Martin Marietta Materials Company / Resolution 2014-21 

 

        3.)   Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report / March 2014 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections /  February 2014 

 Lodging Tax Collections / February 2014 

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell        

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

    

 

 5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

         Review minutes / April 3
rd

  

 

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway  

   C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis    

         Review minutes  /  April 28
th
  

 

 

1 5/05/2014



        
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                     MAY 5, 2014                               PAGE   2 

 
D. Library Board - Lake  
E. Planning Commission – Scott  

Review minutes / March 27
th
  

Staff Report  /  April 24
th
 meeting 

 

   F.  Recreation Board - LeJeune 
   G. Utility Board - Fry  

        Review minutes / February 5
th
 / February 26

th
 / March 26

th
  

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report             

     B.  City Attorney’s Report 

     C.  Department Head Comments 

     D.  City Clerk Report 

                                         

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

1.)  Mr. Willie Williams / Oversight of the Daphne Utility Board 

2.)  Mrs. Annie Root (Daphne Art Center) /  Special Event for Community 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

   

        RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)   Bid Award: Concrete Pipe / Design Precast &* Pipe. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-19 

 

b.)  Bid Award: Plastic Pipe / Ferguson Waterworks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-20 

 

c.)    Bid Award: Rock / Martin Marietta Materials Co. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-21 

 

d.)    . . . . /Resolution 2014-22 

 

 

 ORDINANCES:         

 

       2
ND

 READ     

a.)   Revising Section 9.1, Section 9.10 and Section 10.6 of the Employee 

       Handbook. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-15 

 

b.)   Establishing a Policy for Community Grants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-16 

 

 

        1
ST

 READ 

a.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Recreation HVAC. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-20 

 

b.)   Cancellation of: Website Integration for Animal Shelter & Library 

        Donation and Close the Credit Card Donation Ban Account. . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-21 

 

c.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Hazard Weather / Emergency Duty Pay 

        during the January 2014 Ice Storm. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-22 

 

 

 9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

2 5/05/2014



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT FRY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

3 5/05/2014



APRIL 21, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Reverend Charles Jackson of Macedonia Missionary Baptist Church gave the invocation 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell (arrived at 7:00 PM), John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin 

LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Dane Haygood; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City 

Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Community Development 

Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Mike Hinson, 

Finance Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; David Carpenter, Police 

Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Dorothy 

Morrison, Beautification Committee and Downtown Redevelopment Authority; Tomasina 

Werner, Beautification Committee; Rebecca Trosclair, Beautification Committee; Andy Rutens, 

Galloway, Wettermark Attorneys. 

  

Absent: Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Richard Merchant, 

Building Official; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

March 17, 2014 Council meeting minutes 

There were no corrections to the March 17, 2014 council meeting minutes, and stand approved 

as written. 

 

April 7, 2014 Council meeting minutes 

There were no corrections to the April 7, 2014 council meeting minutes, and stand approved as 

written. 

 

PRESENTATION: 2nd
 
Quarter Beautification Awards: 

 

Mrs. Rebecca Trosclair presented an award to the Hilton Garden Inn, located on North Main 

Street, to the General Manager Mr. Billy Meadows.  Mayor Haygood and members of the 

Beautification looked on as the award was presented.   

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The next meeting will be May 12
th

 at 4:00 p.m. and the minutes from today’s meeting will be in 

the May 5
th

 packet.  

 

4 5/05/2014



APRIL 21, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Davis 
The committee met on April 7

th
, and the minutes are in the next packet. The next meeting will be 

May 5
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting will be May 14
th

 at 4:30 p.m.  Council President Fry mentioned that the 

minutes from the April 9
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The minutes of the April 9th meeting are in the packet. The next meeting is May 14th at 5:00 

p.m. 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The committee met today at 5:00 p.m. and those minutes will be in the next packet.  The next 

meeting will be May 19
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The board will meet May 1
st
 to discuss two issues involving Sportsman Marine.  

   

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be April 23
rd

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be April 28
th 

at 6:00 p.m. 

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

The next meeting will be May 8th.   

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The Planning Commission held their Site Preview meeting on April 16
th

 and will have their full 

meeting on April 24th. 

 

     F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

No report. 

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The next meeting will be April 30
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

5 5/05/2014



APRIL 21, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 
No report. 

 

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

Mr. Ross requested council go into Executive Session at the end of the meeting, not to adjourn, 

but come back in case they need to have a vote and then adjourn. 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

James White—Fire Chief—Chief White reported that Fire and Rescue had performed three 

rescues due to the recent excessive rain on Highways 13, 64, and 181. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported that Brown Bag by the Bay would be ongoing 

every Thursday from 11:30 a.m. – 1:30 p.m.  Additionally he announced that Men’s Softball 

would occur this Saturday, and Sunday the “Sunset Series” would be from 5:30 – 7:00 p.m. at 

Bayfront Park. Relay for Life will be at Daphne High School on May 2
nd

, and a travel softball 

tournament would be ongoing May 3-4. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported the Civic Center staff is getting ready to 

host the Alabama Master Gardeners and are very excited to have them. 

 

Mike Hinson – Finance Director – reported the FY2013 CAFR will be ready by April 30
th

. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – The City was very fortunate to avoid any major 

issues during the flooding last week. 

 

Adrienne Jones – Community Development Director –  announced that an article on Al.com 

ranked Daphne as one of the most business friendly cities in Alabama, ranking 4
th

 of 100.  

 

City Clerk Report – Rebecca A. Hayes 
No report. 

         

7.    PRESENTATION: Matthew Brown 

 

Mr. Brown reported to council on the how fast the area was growing, traffic congestion, funding 

of road projects and how this will affect the economy. 

 

 
 

8.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Tomasina Werner – Daphne - Ms. Werner spoke to the Council regarding the Jubilee Breeze.  

She encouraged the Council to support funding to have the Breeze mailed to the homes of 

Daphne residents, calling the magazine “the City’s best ambassador.” 

 

6 5/05/2014



APRIL 21, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

Bill Wynne - 507 Vann Avenue - intented to discuss a problem but after speaking with the 

Mayor and the Director of Public Works, he found that the situation was already noted.  He 

expressed appreciation to Mr. Johnson and Mayor Haygood for the time and attention they gave 

to the drainage issue on his street. 

 

Rod Drummond - 367 Ridgewood Drive - Echoed the concerns brought forth by the ESMPO 

regarding the increase in traffic volume in the Daphne area.  He complemented the 

Beautification Committee’s efforts, stating that this was a reason more people wanted to live in 

Daphne. 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         
        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)   Prepaid Travel / Adrienne Jones. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-13 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Resolution 2014-13.  

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Resolution 2014-13.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

b.)   Support for ADEM Permit Modification to Include Construction 

        & Demolition (C&D) Landfill for the City of Daphne’s Tallent 

        Lane Facility. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-14 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolution 2014-14.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-14.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

                                         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

7 5/05/2014



APRIL 21, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

c.)    Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize Mayor to Dispose. . . . . /Resolution 

2014-15 

 

d.)    Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize Mayor to Dispose. . . . . /Resolution 

2014-16 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolution 2014-15 and 2014-16.  

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-15 and 2014-16.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

e.)     Acceptance of Streets & Drainage / Bellaton, Phase Three. . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 

2014-17 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolution 2014-17.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-17.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

                                         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

      

 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

       2
ND

 READ     
a.)   Regulating Construction Best Management Practices for Residential Dwellings and Other 

Land Disturbance within the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-14 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-14.   Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

8 5/05/2014



APRIL 21, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-14.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

                                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
a.)   Revising Section 9.1, Section 9.10 and Section 10.6 of the Employee 

       Handbook. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-15 

 

b.)   Establishing a Policy for Community Grants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-16 

 

c.)    Appropriation of Funds: Emergency Replacement 

        Civic Center HVAC Chiller. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-17-A & B  

 

ORDINANCES 2014-15 NAND 2014-16 WERE MADE 1
ST

 READ 

 

 

Council discussed options 2014-17-A and 2014-17-B. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2014-17-A.   

Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake    Aye    Fry   Aye 

Scott    Aye 

 

 
                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-17-A.   Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

Motion by Councilman Scott to amend Ordinance 2014-17-A.  Amendments are as follows: 

 

 

WHEREAS, quotes have been obtained for repairs verses replacement cost for the chiller 

 

WHEREAS, the quote for repair was estimated to be $56,000 and the purchase of a new 

chiller is estimated to cost $250,000 + $41,000 for a rental chiller ($20,000 delivery/setup/1st 

month’s rent + $21,000/two additional months); and 

 

 

9 5/05/2014



APRIL 21, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

WHEREAS, the quote for a rental chiller is estimated to cost $12,000 for delivery, 

installation, and the first month’s rent; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, that funds up to the amount of $240,000  not to exceed $15,000 from the 

General Fund are hereby appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget for 
replacement of the Civic Center chiller and rental chiller with the insurance reimbursement (estimated 

$51,000) to be recorded in the budget as an insurance settlement; and the delivery, installation, and 

rental of a chiller for the Civic Center for the period of one month 

 

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

VOTE ON AMENDMENT 
 

                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 

VOTE ON ORIGINAL MOTION AS AMENDED 

 

                                      MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to enter into Executive Session to discuss pending 

litigation, and return to adjourn the meeting.  The session will be for 30 minutes.   Seconded 

by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

The City Attorney certified that the foregoing is an appropriate reason to enter into 

Executive Session according to the Open Meetings Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway   Aye    LeJeune  Aye    

Rudicell  Aye     Davis   Aye 

Lake    Nay    Fry   Aye 

Scott    Aye     

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Scott, LeJeune, Davis, Fry                NAY    Lake 

 

 

 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

The Council went into Executive Session at 7:50 p.m. 

 

The Council returned from Executive Session at 8:15 p.m. 

10 5/05/2014



APRIL 21, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lejeune to accept the Lamar Settlement for the “shorter sign 

”option.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

Councilman Scott noted that the tree being removed under this settlement agreement was not one of the 

City’s heritage oaks. 

 

Councilman Lake stated for the record: 

 

“It’s the pecan tree, but it’s still one of the trees along 98.  We’re also talking about topping off these oak 

trees, several of these oak trees around this sign to give an exclusive view to this sign, and that in itself is 

totally the opposite of what we were talking about, and you know, this is a reminder, I’m going to use a 

word, crying all day, ‘cause that’s what it seems like, December 16
th
 over again, “we’ve got to make this 

decision right away, without having everything.”  I think that this impacts every resident of Daphne.  I 

don’t see why we need to settle with them, I think we have the winning case, I think, I’ve believed it all 

along that we were winning, and that the only reason why they’re trying to settle is because they see an 

opportunity; they see that we’ve flinched.  I’ve wished we’d send them a message and say “no, we’re not 

going to settle, we’re going to stick with what we’re doing, and we’re going to continue in court.”  I’m 

trying my hardest to bite my tongue, I’m trying my hardest not to..whereas I see, when I saw those oak 

trees being killed down the highway, it upset me.  Now I’m going to see us taking and topping off [those 

trees], and it doesn’t matter what you say, if you hire an arborist or whatever.  That’s who cut the trees on 

the other side of the power lines was an arborist supposedly, and when those arborists cut those trees, it 

made them look like wacky, um crazy the way they did it.  And that was supposedly a trained arborist.  

And now I’m envisioning those trees to be cut, them chopping them down and the tops off of them so 

they can get a good view of their sign, and we’re giving them an exclusivity.  And it is not going to stop 

any other sign company from coming in down the road and putting in signs down 181 or anywhere else.  

It just says Lamar won’t do it.  And we’re not settling this.  Cause we will be back here within the next 

twelve months, not with Lamar but with some other company that is going to come back at us, and we’re 

going to be back at it again.  But that time, we won’t have an insurance representative backing us, we’ll 

have to be paying it out of our own dime, and then everyone will be saying “boy we wish we had listened 

to you John.” And so I’m going to say it now.  When it happens, I’m going to say it: “I told you so”.  It’s 

a mistake.  I hope those of you that made the quick decision last December 16
th
 when we, it was the 

situation of make the vote, will change your vote.  Please look at the long term of what we’re looking at, 

‘cause we’re not just looking at this for Daphne, we’re fighting this for every city in the state of Alabama.    

 

Councilman Lejeune made comment that this issue has been affecting the citizens of Daphne for some 

time now by way of increased legal fees to handle this case. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway   Nay    LeJeune  Aye    

Rudicell  Aye     Davis   Aye 

Lake    Nay    Fry   Aye 

Scott    Aye     

 

AYE    Rudicell, Scott, LeJeune, Davis, Fry NAY    Lake, Conaway 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

11 5/05/2014



APRIL 21, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e9
 

 

 

The Assistant City Clerk read the changes to Ordinance 2014-17-A as amended, and Ordinance 

2017-A became 2014-17-C with the amendment. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-17-C.   Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Scott, Davis, Fry         NAY    LeJeune  

 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-17-C.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

                                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 
9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
Mayor Haygood expressed hopes that everyone had a happy Easter.  He also noted the 

comments made concerning the Jubilee Breeze, stating that we truly do have a jewel in the 

quality of that production, and would like to see if it is possible to restart mailing the magazine to 

get it into the hands of Daphne citizens.   

 

Councilman Rudicell agreed with the Mayor regarding the Jubilee Breeze, but would like to see 

what costs would be cut to offset the expenditure.  He also expressed thanks to those that 

provided assistance to him and contacted him to show support while he was in the hospital. 

 

Councilman Lake “I’m going to say that December 16
th

 was to me a day that will live in infamy 

and today is another day that will live in infamy because I think a horrible injustice was done to 

this city.  Again, we go before everybody has an opportunity to realize what they’re voting on, 

we have to hurry up and get it done.  I’ve heard the last time “vote on it first and we’ll read it 

later.”  Well that’s what happens this time.  Vote on it first and we’ll read it later.  The impact to 

the citizens of this whole community, the whole Eastern Shore, is been set.  And one of the 

things, one of the cornerstones in this community is the quality of life.  And I am saddened 

because I actually realize that this impacts MY district and MY neighborhood.  And it infuriates 

me.”   

 

Councilman Scott acknowledged a citizen who had recently had a drainage issue in his yard 

remediated.  This citizen, Mr. Eddie Murphy, recently won the Lake Forest Landscaping Award 

from the Lake Forest Garden Club. 

 

 

 

12 5/05/2014



APRIL 21, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
0

 

 

Councilman LeJeune hoped everyone had a good Easter and spring break and noted that he 

thought the Jubilee Breeze was a jewel for the city, and that it would be easy to sell an 

advertisement to pay for shipment of the magazine. 

 

Councilman Davis also commented on the Jubilee Breeze, calling it an excellent marketing 

piece for the City.  He supported seeking the use of advertisements to fund mailing the magazine, 

as well as, furthering the City’s marketing efforts.  He noted that this Wednesday at 7 p.m. there 

would be a meeting of the Home Owners Association of Historic Malbis, and he hoped to be able 

to come back with suggestions that would be beneficial to the situation. 

 

Council President Fry also made comment supporting the Jubilee Breeze and creative funding 

efforts to increase circulation in a cost-effective way.  He also noted that Daphne was ranked 4
th

 

as a business friendly city, and is consistent in that ranking.  Lastly, he welcomed Councilman 

Rudicell back to City Hall after an absence due to health concerns. 

 
10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING 

ADJOURNED AT 8:35 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Sarah Toulson      Randy Fry,     

Assistant City Clerk      Council President 

13 5/05/2014



APRIL 25, 2014 

EMERGENCY SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 3:35 p.m. 

 

2.  ROLL CALL 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Tommie Conaway; John Lake (arrived at 3:59 P.M.) Randy 

Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

ABSENT:  Pat Rudicell 

 

Also present:  Mayor Dane Haygood; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; Kevin Boucher, Attorney; 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Mike Hinson, 

Finance Director. 

 

Absent:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk. 

 

3. ORDINANCE 2014-18 / Civic Center HVAC Chiller Emergency Replacement Appropriation 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-18.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Richard Johnson addressed the Council, explaining the three bids received to fulfill the need for a new 

HVAC chiller, and answered questions regarding the specific vendors, comparisons of equipment, and the 

timetable for installation.   

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adopt Ordinance 2014-18.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

4. RESOLUTION 2014-18 / Resolution to authorize the Mayor & the Director of Public Works to 

apply for the State of Alabama's Fiscal Year 2014 Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolution 2014-18.  Seconded by 

Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-18.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

14 5/05/2014



APRIL 25, 2014 

EMERGENCY SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED                MOTION CARRIED 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 4:01 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,    

                                                           

      
______________________________                                                            

Sarah F. Toulson, Assistant City Clerk                                            

                         

        Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

        _________________________________     

             Randy Fry, Council President 

15 5/05/2014



City of Daphne 

 

CONGRATULATIONS 

 
Bayside Academy State Championship Chess Team 

and Coach Eric Nager 
 

WHEREAS, the Bayside Academy Chess Team won the Alabama Scholastic 

Championship held in Montevallo, Alabama on March 16, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, the members of the team are Steve Chen, Trent Kannegieter, Keegan Cort 

and Philip Dobbins; and  

 

WHEREAS, there are no class divisions in chess, and Bayside Academy as a 3A school 

regularly competes with and defeats much larger schools; and 

 

WHEREAS, this is Bayside Academy’s second State Championship in the past three 

years capping off an undefeated year; and 

 

WHEREAS, during the regular season Bayside also won the Mobile-Baldwin County 

League for the ninth time in the past 11 years; and 

 

WHEREAS, Sally Kalaris is the faculty sponsor who is especially phenomenal at 

working with the younger students teaching them how to play; and 

 

WHEREAS, Eric Nager has been the Bayside Academy Chess Team coach for 14 years; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Eric is one of eight National Chess Coaches in the country as certified by the 

U.S. Chess Federation, and is a published author on successful team-building.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of City of Daphne, Alabama do 

hereby extend sincere congratulations to these students and Coach Eric Nager, and wish them 

continued success in their future endeavors. 

 

This certificate of Congratulations is presented by the City of Daphne, Alabama and affixed with 

the official seal this 5
th
 day of May, 2014. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

 

                                     ATTEST:  

          

_____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

16 5/05/2014



17 5/05/2014



18 5/05/2014



19 5/05/2014



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

20 5/05/2014



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
   APRIL 21, 2014 

4:00 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at    4:02 p.m.  Present were Chairperson Mrs. Conaway, Councilman Ron 
Scott, Councilman Joseph Davis, Mayor Dane Haygood, Finance Director Mike Hinson, Senior Accountant 
Suzânne Henson, Accounting Technician Sue Moody,  and Revenue Officer Angie Phillips. 
 
Also in attendance were Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director Richard Johnson,                    
and Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Recreation Director David McKelroy, Councilman Randy Fry.  
Councilman Robin LeJeune arrived at 5:15p.m. 
 

I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

A.  Harbor Financial Services, LLC, Mr. Pfil Hunt, Director of Public Finance – 
Discuss Refunding Opportunities for  2003 & 2006 Warrants 

 
Mr. Pfil Hunt reviewed the summary sheet of information concerning the refunding opportunities for the Series 
2003 and 2006 Warrants (only a partial refunding of the 2006 Warrants to keep below the Bank Qualified limit of 
$10 Million).  Mr. Hunt reviewed the bank qualified option verses the non bank qualified option.  Mr. Hunt noted 
the Bank qualified had the better rate but the refunding amount had to be less than $10 million.  Mr. Hunt noted 
that the recommendation from Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) was that you get at least a 3% 
PV Savings and the bank qualified PV savings would be 4.09%.   
 
Mr. Hunt noted if the City chooses to  

 receive the front loaded savings in the first year the bank qualified savings would be $317,546 and 
the non bank qualified savings would be $179,853.   

 Mr. Hunt continued reviewing the option of receiving the savings over the life of the debt schedule 
(through 4/01/2027) the savings would be $404,511.57- an average of $31,000 over the next 13 years  
(net present value benefit of $388,540.85). 

 
Discussion continued on how long it takes to get the refinancing option ready.  Mr. Hunt answered that it would 
take 4-6 weeks to get the refinancing package prepared (2-3 weeks to get the package ready to send to 
Moody’s then 2 weeks to prepare it for the City).  Mr. Scott recommended Council authorize the Mayor to sign 
agreements.  Mrs. Conaway noted that there is another financing company that has requested to present their 
refinancing information at the May Finance Meeting.  Mr. Scott noted that the rates would be basically the same 
for both companies that it is the fees that would be different.     

 
           .   

Mr. Scott made a motion to move forward with the refinance option presented by 
Harbor Financial Services, LLC with a savings threshold of not less than $300,000.  
Seconded by Mr. Lake. 
 
 
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
       
Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 
 

 

21 5/05/2014



Finance Minutes  2  

Positions      Status 

Mechanic      Promotion 

Recreation Program Coordinator    Pending 

PT Library Aide (2)     DOH: 3/13/14 

Administrative Technician (Mechanical)   Reviewing applications 

 

Safety Committee meeting was held on March 26, 2014.  Discussion was held regarding departmental safety issues.  The 

Civic Center has asked if Public Works could cut back some of the greenery as the road curves near the east side of the 

facility.  Also, they have asked if a sign could be placed near the pedestrian crosswalk when approaching the sidewalk at 

the Main Street exit and entrance. 

 

Next Safety Committee meeting on April 30, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. 

 

HR projects/meetings: 

 Met with Ordinance Committee 4/9/2014 (Hazardous Weather policy) The policy  will be posted for 10 days for 

employees to review 

 Departmental Merit increase requests due April 30, 2014 

 Currently keying in all employee evaluations 

 Employee Benefits/Wellness Fair  

 Benefits/Payroll Coordinator attended IPMA-HR Southern Conference  

April 14-16 

 

Mayor Haygood noted that the Library Computer Technician employee has put in his resignation and his last 
day will be May 2, 2014.   
 
Mr. Scott asked about the process of the Merit increases that are due to be submitted by 4-30-14 and asked 
were these increases budgeted? Mayor said Dept Heads would start by recommending at a minimum one 
employee per department at most 10% of each department’s personnel budget and see how the numbers wash 
out.  The Mayor stated the budget for merit increases is in the 15-18% range of the department’s personnel 
budget. Mayor noted it’s easier to add applicants to the total than it is to take away.  Mayor continued that the 
objective is to reward those who are a cut above and who deserve a merit for their work efforts. Mayor said he 
was looking for a natural breakpoint not just a particular percentage.   Mr. Lake expressed his concerns on this 
process of giving merit increases.   
 
Mrs. Conaway asked about the status of the employee’s grievances concerning pay during the recent ice storm.  
The Mayor answered that this item was sent to the Ordinance Committee to change the City policy and it is on 
the Council agenda tonight.  Discussion continued on the pay for these employees and the new policy that 
would address future occurrences of this nature.  
(New Policy will be updated in Ordinance 2014-15 which is pending adoption at the 05-05-14 Council Meeting – 
Revision of Section 9.1, 9.10 & 10.6 of the City’s Employee Handbook). ($55,000 additional appropriation was 
calculated to be needed to fund the Ice Storm personnel cost: for Pay Period 2-12-14 - $37,788 + Public Safety 
Additional pay due to policy revision -  $17,212) 

 
           .   

Mr. Scott made a motion to appropriate monies (*$55,000) to retroactively pay the 
affected employees as reflected in the revised employee policy pertaining to 
“Emergency Duty Pay”  Ordinance 2014-15 Revision of Section 9.1, 9.10 & 10.6 of the City’s 

Employee Handbook.  (Ord 2014-15-pending adoption) ($55,000 was calculated after discussion in 

Finance Meeting). 

 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A.  Financial Reports 

 
1. Treasurer’s Report:  March, 2014 

 
    The Treasurer’s Report totaling $17,306,059 was presented by Mr. Hinson. Mayor Haygood noted that the 
total City funds balance is down from last year due to completion of several large projects.  Mrs. Conaway 

22 5/05/2014



Finance Minutes  3  

commented on the low balance of $17 on the Credit Card Donation Account.   Mr. Hinson noted this fund has 
not received any donations since its creation. (this account has incurred $523 to date in fees in addition to the 
cost to setup the online process - $1,790 and has a continuing fee of $39.90/month). 
           .   

The Treasurer’s Report as of March 31, 2014 in the amount of $17,306,059 was 
presented.  
           .   

Motion by Mr. Davis to close the Credit Card Donation Account and remove the 
website integration for this process.  Seconded by Mr. Scott. 
 
 
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes:  February, 2014 
 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs.  Mrs. Henson noted that $1,051,602.29 was 
collected for February 2014.  Mrs. Henson noted collections were up $18,123.71 for the February budgeted 
collections and $21,905.41 for collections year to date over budgeted. Discussion was made that Eastern Shore 
Park ST collections were previously listed in a separate column but since this amount is no longer required to be 
separated out due to changes in debt requirements all sales & use tax collections are listed in one column. 

 
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections,  February, 2014 

 
Mr. Hinson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for February 2014 were 
$49,784.71 which is down from February 2013’s collections - $ 54,207.03. Discussion continued that this 
amount should increase after the new Lodging Tax rate increase takes effect. 

 
 

5. Report: New Business Licenses – March, 2014    
      
Mrs. Phillips reviewed the Business Licenses Report.  Mrs. Phillips noted that total business license issued YTD 
were down 120 from last year.  Mrs. Phillips noted that 359 licenses issued for March, up 7 from March 2013 
(352 licenses issued).  Mrs. Phillips continued that of the 359 Business License issued, 304 were renewals, 50 
new businesses with 11 of those having a physical location in Daphne and 5 were prior year licenses.  Mrs. 
Phillips noted she would provide a map showing each of the 8 new businesses locations for Council.  Mrs. 
Phillips noted that there is an increase in the number of businesses that sell the new electronic cigarettes.  
Discussion continued that there have been questions from citizens as to if the electronic cigarettes are allowed 
in public places like ballparks and restaurants?  Mrs. Phillips continued reviewing Revenue’s activity throughout 
the month of March.   

   
6.  Bills Paid Reports –  February, 2014 

The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet.   
 
 

B. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
 
General Fund: 

1. Civic Center Chiller Repair - $56,000 vs. Replacement - $291,000 (chiller $250,000 + 

$41,000 rental equip) 
• Option #1: Civic Center Chiller Repair - $5,000/Insurance Deductible: 
($56,000 est total repair cost less insurance reimbursement est $51,000)   
• Option #2: Civic Center Replacement - $241,000 ($291,00 total: New Chiller 
$250,000 + $41,000 rental equip less $51,000 insurance reimbursement) 
• Note:  Insurance Adjuster is still evaluating City’s claim 

 
Mr. Johnson stated the chiller is working at half capacity and a recommendation was made by the City’s HVAC 
maintenance company to replace the chiller due to the age of the current chiller.  Mr. Johnson noted that three 

23 5/05/2014



Finance Minutes  4  

quotes had been obtained for replacing the chiller but that all three chillers were not equal quality. Mr. Johnson 
noted the three preliminary quotes were: T&M Heating & AC-$130,060, JLS International-$124,769, and 
Johnson Controls-$250,000.   Mr. Johnson noted that Johnson Controls offers a 66 month warranty.  Mr. 
Johnson noted the delivery and install of the chiller would take approximately 8-10 weeks and that a rental 
chiller will be needed during that time.  Mr. Johnson stated that the cost for rental of a chiller is approximately 
$10,000/month.    Mr. Davis inquired if the insurance company would pay for the rental of the chiller and Mrs. 
Henson answered the insurance company confirmed they would not.  Discussion continued on recommending 
$240,000 be appropriated for an “Emergency” purchase of a new chiller and this be considered at the Council 
Meeting that evening.  Discussion continued that to suspend the rules and adopt the ordinance it had to be a 
unanimous decision of the Council.  Mr. Fry commented that he would like for the final approval of the vendor 
come back before the Council.   

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to appropriate up to $240,000 for the purchase of the chiller with 
final approval of vendor coming back before Council prior to ordering.  Seconded by 
Mr. Joe Davis.  Motion carried. 
(Note:  Ordinance 2014-17C was approved at the 4-21-14 Council Meeting for an amount not to exceed 
$15,000 for one month’s rental of a chiller.  Ordinance 2014-18  $150,170 was approved at the Special 
called Council Meeting on 4-25-14 appropriating $150,170 for the purchase of new chiller, maintenance 
agreement, & a rental chiller.) 
 

C. Bids: (Resolution) 
 

1.  2014-F-CONCRETE PIPE 
Mr. Johnson reviewed the bids and noted that the recommendation was for the low bidder Design Precast & 
Pipe.  Mr. Johnson noted they are a new vendor for the City.  Mr. Johnson noted the company is located in 
Gulfport Mississippi. 

 
2.  2014-G-PLASTIC PIPE 

 
Mr. Johnson reviewed the bids and noted that the recommendation was for the low bidder Ferguson 
Waterworks.  The City has purchased from this company before. 

 
3.  2014-H-ROCK 

 
Mr. Johnson reviewed the bid and noted that the recommendation was for Martin Marietta Materials 
Company.  Mr. Johnson noted both bids were very close but Martin Marietta bid on ALL items and Vulcan 
Materials did not bid on pea gravel.  

 

Motion by Mr. Scott  to recommend to Council to award the following bids per unit cost 
as bid: 
1.  2014-F-CONCRETE PIPE – Design Precast & Pipe 
2.  2014-G-PLASTIC PIPE – Ferguson Waterworks 
3.  2014-H-ROCK  - Martin Marietta Materials Co. 

Seconded by Mr. Davis.  Motion carried. 
 
 

D.  Prepaid Travel:  Adrienne Jones, Community Development Director, 2014 American 
Planning Association National Planning Conference, April 25th through April 30th, 
2014, Atlanta, Georgia - $255. 

The Prepaid Travel request for Mrs. Adrienne Jones, Community Development Director was presented. 

 

Motion by Mr. Davis to recommend to Council to approve the prepaid travel as follows: 
 Adrienne Jones, Community Development Director, 2014 American Planning 
Association National Planning Conference, April 25th through April 30th, 2014, Atlanta, 
Georgia - $255.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 

24 5/05/2014



Finance Minutes  5  

 
 

E. Surplus Minutes for March, 2014 Sale 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the minutes of the March 2014 Surplus Sale where $41,649.06 was collected for the sale 
of four vehicles and an excavator.  (Total Surplus Sale monies collected for FY2014 is $51,760.24). 
 
 
 

F. Recreation HVAC Upgrade 
 

Mr. McKelroy reviewed the Recreation HVAC upgrade that was needed and had previously been discussed at 
the last Building and Property Meeting.  Mr. McKelroy requested that monies be appropriated to replace needed 
three units.  Mr. Johnson reviewed the problems with the current old units and noted the recommendation is to 
replace three of the four units.  Mrs. Conaway asked how much was included in the budget and what is the  
additional amount that needs to be appropriated.  Mrs. Henson noted that $14,000 was originally approved in 
the FY2014 budget and Mr. McKelroy stated that an additional $21,000 is estimated to be needed to 
purchase the three HVAC units (total project cost of $35,000).  Discussion continued that the following needed 
to be included in the Mayor 5, 2014 Council packet:  1) Vendor quotes for the three HVAC Units Council’s 
review, 2) a recommendation on the vendor, and 3) an Ordinance to appropriate the additional $21,000 needed 
for the purchase of the three HVAC units.  

 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 5:28 p.m.  

 

25 5/05/2014



26 5/05/2014



27 5/05/2014



28 5/05/2014



29 5/05/2014



30 5/05/2014



31 5/05/2014



32 5/05/2014



33 5/05/2014



34 5/05/2014



35 5/05/2014



36 5/05/2014



37 5/05/2014



38 5/05/2014



39 5/05/2014



40 5/05/2014



41 5/05/2014



42 5/05/2014



43 5/05/2014



44 5/05/2014



45 5/05/2014



46 5/05/2014



47 5/05/2014



48 5/05/2014



49 5/05/2014



50 5/05/2014



51 5/05/2014



52 5/05/2014



53 5/05/2014



54 5/05/2014



55 5/05/2014



56 5/05/2014



57 5/05/2014



58 5/05/2014



59 5/05/2014



60 5/05/2014



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

61 5/05/2014



62 5/05/2014



63 5/05/2014



64 5/05/2014



65 5/05/2014



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

JANUARY 27, 2014 

6:00 P.M.  

 

             Daphne Industrial Development Board Minutes                                                    Page 1 of 8 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order at 6:05 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT – Toni Fassbender; Dennis Kearney, III;  John Cox; Pokey Miller; Jeffrey 

Ramsland. 

 

Absent Excused:  Doug Bailey; Dan Romanchuk. 

 

Also present –  Rebecca Hayes, Recording Secretary; Lee Johnson, BCEDA; Councilman Joe Davis, 

Council Liaison; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director, Matt Atwood, Algae Systems; 

Andrew Septimus, Algae Systems. 

 

2. APPROVE MINUTES / January 27, 2014 

 

MOTION BY Jeffrey Ramsland to approve the January 27, 2014 meeting minutes.  Seconded 

by Denis Kearney. 

 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

3.  OLD BUSINESS   

     a.)   By-Laws 

 

MOTION BY Jeffrey Ramsland to adopt the revised By-Laws as written.  Seconded by John 

Cox. 

 

                                        MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

By-Laws are spread out upon these minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66 5/05/2014



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

JANUARY 27, 2014 

6:00 P.M.  

 

             Daphne Industrial Development Board Minutes                                                    Page 2 of 8 

 

 

 

BY-LAWS 

OF 

THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

OF THE  

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

I 
SEAL 

 The corporate seal shall have inscribed thereon the name of the corporation and the words 

“CORPORATE SEAL” and “ALABAMA”. 

II 
DIRECTORS 

1. The property and business of this corporation shall be managed by its board of 

directors, consisting of members, who shall be elected in accordance with the provisions 

of the applicable laws of Alabama, by the governing body of said city.  Provisions are as 

listed below: 

 The board must have a minimum of seven (7) members, but can be more  

 Five (5) of the number must be qualified electors and taxpayers in the 

municipality 

 At the discretion of the city’s governing body the remaining members shall be 

qualified electors and taxpayers of the municipality, or up to two (2) can be 

outside of the corporate limits 

 Officers and/or employees of the City cannot be a director on the IDB 

 The directors shall be elected by the governing body of the municipality 

 Each director on the board shall serve a staggered term 

 The directors are chosen from the governing body from the membership of 

the Chamber of Commerce, board of trade or other similar civic organization, 

unless in the judgment of the governing body there are no members of such 

organizations that are either suitable or available 

 The initial terms of the members of the board of directors shall be as follows: 

 two members shall be elected for two years, two members shall be elected for 

four years, and the remaining three members shall be elected for six years.  After 

the respective expirations of said initial terms, the terms of the members shall 

each be six years.  Any vacancy in the membership of the board shall be filled by 

election of the said governing body. 

 

2. The directors may hold their meeting and have one or more offices and keep the       

67 5/05/2014



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

JANUARY 27, 2014 

6:00 P.M.  

 

             Daphne Industrial Development Board Minutes                                                    Page 3 of 8 

 

 

books of the corporation at such places as they may from time to time determine. 

 

3. In addition to the powers and authorities by these by-laws expressly conferred upon 

it, the board of directors may exercise all such powers of the corporation and do all such 

lawful acts and things as are not by statute or by the certificate of incorporation or by 

these by-laws denied to them. 

 

4. The members of the board of directors shall serve without compensation, but shall be 

reimbursed for all actual expenses incurred by them in and about the performance of their 

duties as members of the board of directors. 

 

                                                       III 
 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

1. Regular meeting of the board of directors may be held with notice to the directors at 

such times and places as shall from time to time be determined by resolution adopted by 

the board of directors. 

 

2. Special meetings of the board of directors may be called by the chairman on one 

day’s notice to each member of the board of directors.  Special meetings may be called by 

any two members of the board of directors upon one day’s notice to each member of the 

board of directors.  

 

3. Any regular meeting or special meeting of the board of directors may be continued in 

session by being adjourned at the end thereof to a specified time and place; and at any 

adjourned meeting may again be continued in session by adjournment thereof. 

 

4. At all meetings of the board of directors to constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business a majority being present shall be necessary and sufficient, and the act of a 

majority of the members of the board of directors present at any meeting at which there is 

a quorum shall be the act of the board of directors; provided, however, that the 

affirmative vote of a majority of the entire board of directors shall be necessary to 

authorize the borrowing of money and the issuance of securities by the corporation, and 

to take the actions hereinafter referred to under paragraphs 4 and 5 of the heading 

“Officers”, and under the heading “Amendments”. 

 

                                                                IV 
 

68 5/05/2014



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

JANUARY 27, 2014 

6:00 P.M.  

 

             Daphne Industrial Development Board Minutes                                                    Page 4 of 8 

 

 

OFFICERS 

 

1. The officers of the corporation shall be elected by the board of directors and shall 

consist of a chairman of the board of directors, a vice chairman of the board of directors, 

a secretary of the corporation and a treasurer of the corporation.  The chairman and vice 

chairman of the board of directors must be members of the board of directors, and said 

offices shall not be held by the same members.  The secretary and the treasurer of the 

corporation need not be (but may be) members of the board and said offices may be held 

by the same person. 

 

 

2. The board of directors may appoint such employees and agents as it may deem 

necessary, who shall hold their offices for such terms and shall exercise such powers and 

perform such duties as shall be determined from time to time by the board of directors. 

 

3. The salaries of all employees and agents of the corporation shall be fixed by the board 

of directors. 

 

4. The officers of the corporation shall hold office for a period of one year and until 

their successors are chosen and qualified in their stead.  Any officer elected or appointed 

by the board of directors may be removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a 

majority of the entire board of directors 

 

5. In case of the absence of any officer of the corporation, or for any other reason that 

the board of directors may deem sufficient, the board of directors may delegate, for the 

time being, the powers and duties, or any of them, of such officer to any other officer, 

provided that a majority of the entire board of directors concur therein. 

 

V 
 

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD 

 

1. The chairman of the board of directors shall be the executive officer of the 

corporation.  He shall preside at all meetings of the board of directors and see that all 

orders and recommendations of the board of directors are carried into effect.  He shall 

execute all contract of the corporation. 

 

VI 

69 5/05/2014



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

JANUARY 27, 2014 

6:00 P.M.  

 

             Daphne Industrial Development Board Minutes                                                    Page 5 of 8 

 

 

 
THE VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

1. The vice chairman of the board of directors shall have the same powers and duties 

as the chairman except that he shall preside at meetings of the board of directors only 

in the absence of the chairman. 

 

 

 

VII 

 
THE SECRETARY 

 

1. The secretary of the corporation shall attend all sessions of the board of directors and 

record the minutes of all proceedings thereof in a book to be kept for that purpose.  He 

shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the board of directors.  He shall 

keep in safe custody the seal of the corporation, and when authorized by the board of 

directors, shall affix the same to any instrument requiring it, and shall attest it.  He shall 

perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors. 

 

VIII 
 

THE TREASURER 

 

1. The treasurer of the corporation shall be the custodian of all funds of the corporation 

and shall withdraw and expend the same from time to time as may be authorized by the 

board of directors.  He shall also serve as assistant secretary with full authority to 

perform all duties of the secretary only in the absence of the secretary.  He shall perform 

such other duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors. 

 

                                                                         IX 

 
CHECKS 

 

1. All checks or demands for money or notes of the corporation shall be signed by 

such officer or officers as the board of directors may from time to time designate. 

 

                                                                       

70 5/05/2014



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

JANUARY 27, 2014 

6:00 P.M.  

 

             Daphne Industrial Development Board Minutes                                                    Page 6 of 8 

 

 

           X 

                                                            FISCAL YEAR 

 
1. The fiscal year shall begin on October 1

st
 in each calendar year and shall end on 

the then next succeeding September 30
th

.  

 

XI 

 
                                                                 AMENDMENTS 

 

1. These by-laws may be altered or amended by the affirmative vote of a majority of the 

entire board of directors. 

 

 

       b.)  Algae Systems 

Matt Attwood, CEO of Algae Systems, said they are very happy with the community and the support 

they have shown.  They are in the process of commissioning the plant, and they have a half acre of 

bags, and are growing algae in the bags right now.  There are anywhere from 20 to 40 people on the 

site on any given day, and they have 20 employees.  Most of the operations are located on Jordan 

Lane.  They will be in full operation by late May, and they will be gathering data for several years.  

Everything is going well, and he believes they will be successful in Daphne. 

 

4.   TREASURERS REPORT  

The treasurers report will be considered at the next meeting. 

 

 

5.   NEW BUSINESS 

      a.)  Economic Development 

Joe mentioned that they need to have a list of the incentives the IDB can offer a business that is 

thinking of coming into Daphne.  He will contact the board members in making contact with 

prospective businesses.  He feels you cannot wait for a business to come to you for help that you 

need to be proactive. 

 

Toni said she supports Joe handling that aspect for her due to her busy schedule. 

 

 

 

 

71 5/05/2014



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

JANUARY 27, 2014 

6:00 P.M.  

 

             Daphne Industrial Development Board Minutes                                                    Page 7 of 8 

 

 

      b.)  I-10 Bridge 

 

MOTION BY John Cox to authorize Toni to send a letter of support for the I-10 Bridge.  

Seconded by Jeffrey Ramsland. 

 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

       c.)  Chamber Leadership Trip to Memphis 

Joe said it was a great learning experience.  He was very interested in Germantown that was across 

the river from Memphis.  He said Germantown and Memphis is comparable to what the Eastern 

Shore is to Mobile.  He mentioned that the city’s Comprehensive Plan needs updating saying that the 

IDB funded the plan and asked that they consider funding the update.  He also noted that he is 

working to change the zip code for TimberCreek from a Spanish Fort code to a Daphne code. 

 

        d.)   Incubator 

Tony discussed an article from AL.com regarding an incubator, and asked the members to think 

about either doing an incubator or offering tax abatements and other incentives to incoming 

businesses. 

 

6.   BALDWIN COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE UPDATE 

Lee handed out a list of available building sites in Baldwin County.  He mentioned there is a logistics 

company looking to come into Daphne which will be white collar high paying jobs.  They will start 

small and build up to 70 employees over three years.  He also submitted Daphne’s name to a 

company scouting out sites that will employee 300 employees and will need large acreage. 

 

6.   OTHER BUSINESS 

Joe mentioned a report coming from Angie Phillips the Revenue Officer, listing new businesses in 

the city saying this is the sort of information that they need to stay in touch with, because they should 

also be helping existing businesses. 

 

7.   NEXT MEETING        

The next meeting date will be on Memorial Day.  There will not be a rescheduling of the meeting 

unless there is something which requires a vote. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

72 5/05/2014



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

JANUARY 27, 2014 

6:00 P.M.  

 

             Daphne Industrial Development Board Minutes                                                    Page 8 of 8 

 

 

8.   ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY John Cox to adjourn.  Seconded by Jeffrey Ramsland. 

 

                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING ADJOUNED AT 

 7:21 P.M. 

 
 

Submitted by:       Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

______________________________   ____________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, Secretary     Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

73 5/05/2014



74 5/05/2014



75 5/05/2014



76 5/05/2014



77 5/05/2014



78 5/05/2014



79 5/05/2014



80 5/05/2014



81 5/05/2014



82 5/05/2014



83 5/05/2014



84 5/05/2014



85 5/05/2014



86 5/05/2014



87 5/05/2014



88 5/05/2014



89 5/05/2014



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

90 5/05/2014



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

91 5/05/2014



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-19 

2014-F-CONCRETE PIPE 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the CONCRETE 
PIPE will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the CONCRETE PIPE and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the CONCRETE PIPE be awarded to 
Design Precast & Pipe. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Design Precast & Pipe for unit cost (delivered) as follows:   
 

            Price per linear foot  

Description    Design Precast & Pipe, Inc.  

12" T & G C-3                                      13.52  

15" T & G C-3                                      10.50  

18" T & G C-3                                      14.40  

21" T & G C-3 DNE                                         -    

24" T & G C-3                                      21.98  

27" T & G C-3 DNE                                         -    

30" T & G C-3                                      31.73  

36" T & G C-3                                      41.25  

42" T & G C-3                                      51.45  

48" T & G C-3                                      65.03  

54" T & G C-3                                      80.10  

60" T & G C-3                                      97.13  

66" T & G C-3 DNE                                         -    

72" T & G C-3                                     135.83  

84" T & G C-3 DNE                                         -    

96" T & G C-3 DNE                                         -    

      

18" X 11" T & G C-3 ARCH                                      16.92  

22" X 13" T & G C-3 ARCH                                      20.97  

29" X 18" T & G C-3 ARCH                                      29.25  

36" X 23" T & G C-3 ARCH                                      35.28  

92 5/05/2014



44" X 27" T & G C-3 ARCH                                      48.33  

51" X 31" T & G C-3 ARCH                                      62.64  

58" X 36" T & G C-3 ARCH                                      79.65  

65" X 40" T & G C-3 ARCH                                      97.11  

73" X 45" T & G C-3 ARCH                                     119.98  

88" X 54" T & G C-3 ARCH DNE                                         -    

      

DESCRIPTION     

4' X 4' 
                                   163.07  

6' X 4'                                     286.11  

8' X 4'                                     391.06  

6' X 5'                                     309.99  

8' X 5'                                     420.27  

                                 

 
 
as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2014-F-CONCRETE PIPE. 
 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA,           day of _               _, 2014. 
 
 

     
                                                                                                                                                                                        

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
        
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

93 5/05/2014



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-20 
2014-G-PLASTIC PIPE 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the PLASTIC PIPE will exceed this 
amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed  the bids for the PLASTIC PIPE and determined that the bid as 
presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the PLASTIC PIPE be awarded to Ferguson Waterworks. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE MAYOR 
AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of Ferguson Waterworks. 
for unit cost listed in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2014-G-PLASTIC PIPE. 
  

                                  

$

      8"                          3.44 

10"                          4.62 

12"                          5.47 

15"                          7.05 

18"                          9.59 

24"                        16.13 

30"                        23.70 

36"                        29.19 

42"                        38.00 

48"                        46.51 

60"                        87.63 

Geotech Filter Cloth, 

Heavyweight, 16’ x 300’ / 

Roll

                     406.50 

Straw-Coconut Erosion 

Control Standard Blanket, 

8’x113’/Roll

                       47.13 

Anchor Staples, 11 gauge,  

500 per box
                       30.04 

Size

 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 
THIS              day of                               , 2014 

   
_____________________________ 

                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST:   
_________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

94 5/05/2014



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-21 

2014-H-ROCK MATERIAL 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the ROCK 
MATERIAL will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the ROCK MATERIAL and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the ROCK MATERIAL be awarded to 
Martin Marietta Materials Company. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Martin Marietta Materials Company for unit cost (delivered) as 
follows:  
 
     Crushed Aggregate 825-A  33.75 
                                             Crushed Aggregate 825-B 33.75 
     #57 Limestone            34.00 
                                              #78 Pea Gravel          32.25 
     Rip Rap – Class I        44.75 
               Rip Rap – Class II       44.75 
 
      
as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2014-H-ROCK MATERIAL. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS                    day of _                    _, 2014. 
 

                                                                           
     

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
        
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk                                                               

95 5/05/2014



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-15 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO REVISE SECTION 9.1, SECTION 9.10, AND 

SECTION 10.6 OF THE CITY’S EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration believes 

that certain revisions to Sections 9.1, 9.10 and 10.6 of the City of Daphne Employee Handbook 

are necessary for the proper administration of said Handbook and the policies contained therein; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I:  REVISIONS TO SECTIONS 9.1, 9.10, AND 10.6 
 

 That Sections 9.1, 9.10, and Section 10.6 of the Employee Handbook be and are hereby 

revised as follows: 

 

9.1 RESPONSIBILITY FOR ATTENDANCE AT WORK. 

General Requirements. All employees are responsible for being present at work during their 

scheduled work time, unless their absence has been approved by their department head or his 

designated representative.  If an employee has excessive absence occurrences or incomplete 

shifts (arriving late or leaving early), the employee will be subject to discipline.  Any absence 

from work for a period of three (3) consecutive working days without providing notice as 

required by this policy may be considered as a voluntary resignation by an employee. 

Department heads and supervisors must keep up with employee attendance and the reasons for 

absences, tardiness, and early departures to insure unexcused absenteeism is addressed through 

the disciplinary process while approved absences are excused and not counted for disciplinary 

purposes. 

 

Notice Requirements.  Each department will provide methods for employees to provide notice of 

absences, late arrivals or early departures, such as by providing supervisor cell phone numbers 

and administrative contact persons within the department.  As a general rule applicable to all city 

employees, if an employee is unable to report for work, or to report on time, he must notify his 

supervisor or department head within fifteen (15) minutes of the scheduled start of his work day 

unless unusual circumstances prevent him from doing so.  Department heads may provide for an 

alternative notification period applicable to specific departments, such as thirty minutes or one 

hour prior to the start of the work day.  Department heads will ensure such alternative reporting 

time frames are posted in the department or otherwise made known to department staff in 

writing, and will provide a copy of the notification period to the human resources director.  If an 

employee has a need to leave his assigned work area before the end of his scheduled work time, 

he must notify his supervisor or department head and obtain permission for such early departure. 

An employee’s report of an absence, late arrival, or early departure on the day of the absence or 

tardiness as required by this policy does not guarantee that the absence or tardiness will be 

96 5/05/2014



2014-15                   Hazardous Weather/Emergency Leave and Premium Pay Policies              Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 

authorized or excused.  Management has discretion to decide if the reason given for the absence 

or tardiness is a sufficient excuse.  If employee foresees a need to be absent for a period longer 

than one workday, the employee should consider applying for a Leave of Absence. Applying for 

a Leave of Absence does not suggest the Leave will necessarily be approved.  Requested time 

away from work which has been approved by the employee’s department head or supervisor and 

included in the schedule at least three (3) weeks in advance, absent extraordinary circumstances, 

also is not considered an unexcused absence.   

 

Hazardous Weather & Emergencies. Hazardous weather (e.g., hurricanes or ice storms) or 

emergency situations (e.g., fires or gas leaks) may require total or partial closure of a single City 

worksite or multiple worksites or total or partial cancelation of a City activity or multiple 

activities. Absent a state of emergency declared by or ratified by the City Council defining the 

length of a declared emergency, the Mayor has sole discretion to designate when hazardous 

weather or emergency conditions begin and end for purposes of applying the policies and 

procedures in this handbook.  On a department by department basis and depending on the nature 

of the hazardous weather or emergency circumstances, the Mayor may authorize the closure of 

the affected City worksite(s) and/or the cancelation of the affected City activity or activities. 

Depending on the circumstances, employees may be required by the Mayor or Department 

Head(s) authorized by the Mayor to: (i) report for work at the employee’s usual worksite as 

scheduled; (ii) report for work at an alternative worksite or worksites; (iii) report early or late for 

a scheduled shift; (iv) report for previously unscheduled work; (v) remain off work and not 

report for a scheduled shift; and (vi) engage in alternative duties or activities.  Failure or refusal 

without authorization or excuse by the Mayor or Department Head to engage in any instructed 

activities constitutes insubordination and/or unexcused absenteeism, and may result in discipline 

up to and including discharge.  The City will make every reasonable effort to publicize approved 

details regarding worksite closing(s), alterative worksite location(s), alternative activities or 

duties, and alterations to scheduled shift starting and departure times, such as by broadcasting 

over the local radio station and/or using other technologies.   But each employee remains 

individually responsible to contact his supervisor or Department Head concerning whether he 

should report to work at the scheduled time and whether he should report to his usual worksite if 

he is uncertain as to the situation created by the hazardous weather or emergency.  Each 

employee is expected to make a good faith effort to get to work at his usual worksite at the 

scheduled arrival time and to remain at work until the scheduled departure time, unless otherwise 

notified.  An employee who is unable to get to work, or arrive at the scheduled start time, or 

remain until the scheduled departure time, at either his usual or alternative worksite, due to 

hazardous weather or emergency conditions must notify his supervisor as provided in this policy 

in order for the absence or tardiness or early departure to be excused. Absences from work, late 

arrivals, and early departures due to hazardous weather or emergency conditions must be 

reported as such on attendance reports.  The employee’s Department Head may require an 

employee to make up the missed time so long as feasible work is available and the time can be 

made up in the same workweek. 

 

9.10. PAID ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE.   

Overview. Unclassified and classified employees may be granted administrative leave with pay 

in accordance with the following guidelines, provided the absence is on a regularly scheduled 

workday for the employees.  The number of hours of leave granted for each approved day of 

97 5/05/2014



2014-15                   Hazardous Weather/Emergency Leave and Premium Pay Policies              Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 

leave will not exceed the number of hours the employee would have been scheduled to work for 

that day.  Administrative leave will not be charged against the vacation or sick leave of an 

employee.  The following types of administrative leave are provided by the city. 

 

Civil/Legal.  Leave will be granted eligible employees for jury duty, court attendance as a 

witness in a case not involving personal litigation, and voting.  The length of time granted for 

voting will be the reasonable time necessary to vote and normally will be granted at the start or 

end of a workday.  Attendance in court by an employee who is acting in an official capacity will 

not be considered as administrative leave but as regular work time.  The provisions of any law or 

city policy that require any fees provided an employee who is attending court in an official 

capacity to be turned into the city will be observed.  In other situations, any fees paid an 

employee will be retained by the employee in addition to his administrative leave pay. 

 

Bereavement.  Bereavement leave is intended to provide an eligible employee time off with pay 

for purposes of attending to personal matters associated with the death of a close family member 

and/or for attending a family member’s funeral.  Up to twenty-four (24) hours of bereavement 

leave will be granted an employee who has a death in his immediate family.  Immediate family is 

defined as follows:  Spouse, children, parents, grandparents, grandchildren, brothers, sisters, or 

the equivalent relations of the employee’s spouse.  Included within the definition of family are 

those persons who live with the family as a member of the family whether related or not.  If 

additional time off is required beyond the bereavement leave days authorized, an employee may 

request vacation leave or leave without pay. 

 

Hazardous Weather/Emergency Leave (Non-Exempt Employees).   Depending on the 

circumstances, under conditions described in and during the time frame designated in Section 

9.1, paid hazardous weather/emergency leave for non-exempt employees may be provided. Time 

paid for hazardous weather/emergency leave will not count as “hours worked” for purposes of 

overtime calculation.  If an employee is scheduled to work but, due to conditions described in 

Section 9.1, is instructed not to report for work as scheduled, or is instructed to arrive late or 

depart early, or is authorized and excused from arriving or departing on time after giving notice 

as provided in Section 9.1, then the non-exempt employee will be paid an amount equal to his 

regular pay rate for the scheduled time not worked.  For example, if a 12-hour shift non-exempt 

employee is instructed or allowed to report to work six hours late and then works the remainder 

of the 12-hour scheduled shift, the employee will be paid the usual amount for the full 12-hour 

shift. Even if hazardous weather or emergency conditions exist, no employee will receive 

administrative leave under this policy for time not worked due to other reasons, such as the 

employee is on a previously scheduled leave of another type or was not otherwise scheduled to 

work.    

 

10.6.  EMERGENCY DUTY PAY 

Additional Emergency Duty Overtime Pay For Exempt Employees.  In the event of a state of 

emergency affecting the City of Daphne as declared by Federal, State, County, or City 

government and ratified by the Mayor of the City of Daphne and/or such other competent 

authority, the Mayor may utilize exempt employees to aid the City’s emergency response during 

extended work hours beyond the employees’ usual schedules.  In the event of such a declared 

state of emergency, beginning when such state of emergency is declared and ending when such 

98 5/05/2014



2014-15                   Hazardous Weather/Emergency Leave and Premium Pay Policies              Page 4 of 5 

 

 

 

state of emergency is lifted, exempt employees will be paid additional emergency duty overtime 

compensation for hours worked in response to the emergency over 40 in the seven-day 

workweek.  The rate of pay for this additional emergency duty overtime compensation will be 

equal to one and one-half (1
1
/2) times the exempt employee’s “calculated hourly rate” which will 

be determined by dividing the exempt employee's annual salary by 2080. 

 

Additional Hazardous Weather/Emergency Duty Pay for Non-Exempt Employees.   Depending 

on the circumstances, under conditions described in and during the time frame designated in 

Section 9.1, two types of hazardous weather/emergency premium pay for non-exempt employees 

may be provided, if the hazardous weather or emergency conditions affect multiple City 

worksites and/or multiple City activities. If the hazardous weather or emergency affects only a 

single City worksite or activity, and employees are instructed to work at an alternative worksite 

or provided alternative duties, no additional premium will be paid for such work.  For example, 

if fire damages the Library, and Library employees are relocated to work at City Hall, no 

additional premium pay will be provided. If a non-exempt employee is required to work as 

previously scheduled or required to report for unscheduled work or required to report earlier than 

scheduled or depart work later than scheduled despite hazardous weather or  emergency 

conditions affecting multiple City worksites or activities as provided in Section 9.1, the non-

exempt employee will be paid (1) an additional premium equal to ½ times the employee’s pay 

rate for time actually worked during the employee’s regularly scheduled shift, and (2) an 

additional premium equal to the employee’s pay rate for time worked beyond the hours 

previously scheduled for the employee. For example, a non-exempt employee paid at $15.00 per 

hour who is scheduled to work an eight (8) shift and who is required to actually work ten hours 

will be paid $22.50/hour during the regularly scheduled eight hours and $30/hour for the two 

additional hours worked. The overtime pay rate for any hours worked over 40 during the same 

workweek will be adjusted accordingly.    

 

Inclement Weather – Use of Vacation Pay.  When inclement weather prevents an employee who 

works outdoors from performing work outside, he will be given other duties that can be 

performed indoors.  If an employee does not wish to perform the alternate work, he may request 

vacation leave; however, he will be required to work if his presence is needed.  If an employee 

requests time off and he does not have any accrued leave with pay that he can take, he may be 

given time off without pay. 

 

SECTION II: REPEALER 

 

 That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, 

Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any 

reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 

be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

99 5/05/2014



2014-15                   Hazardous Weather/Emergency Leave and Premium Pay Policies              Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by 

the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ____  DAY OF ________, 2014. 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

DANE HAYGOOD 

MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

REBECCA HAYES 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

100 5/05/2014



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-16 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR COMMUNITY GRANTS 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that it is in the 

public interest to provide limited financial assistance to community groups and organizations 

within the community to assist with activities or special events that advances a public purpose.  

This support is in recognition of the value of these activities to the benefit, growth and spirit of 

the public community and in helping the municipality retain a strong community focus.  The 

Council sees a need for a uniform policy for community grants to limit financial contributions on 

an annual basis and to provide for a process or procedure for the request and administration of 

community grants. 

 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA: 

 

 SECTION 1.  DEFINITIONS 

 

  Unless the context clearly indicates a different meaning, the words, terms and 

phrases used in this Ordinance shall have the following respective meanings: 

 

 "City" shall mean the City of Daphne in the State of Alabama. 

 

 “Complete application form” shall mean a properly filled out 

application and all supporting documents.  

 

 "Person" shall mean any person, entity, firm, corporation, 

partnership, association, administrator, trustee, or other fiduciary. 

 

 "Public purpose" shall mean the objective of the promotion of 

public health, safety, morals, security, prosperity, contentment, and 

the general welfare of the community. 

 

 SECTION 2.  COMMUNITY GRANT PROGRAM 

 

  The City of Daphne hereby adopts a Community Grant Program (hereinafter 

“CGP”).  This Ordinance does not specially commit the City to any particular contribution of 

funds.  As part of the annual budgeting process the City Council will determine the financial 

commitment to the Community Grant Program.   

 

 

101 5/05/2014



ORDINANCE 2014- 16         ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR COMMUNITY GRANTS         Page 2 of 4 

 

 SECTION 3.  APPLICABILITY 

 

  Outside entities which provide public benefit but not direct financial benefit to the 

City of Daphne may only be funded by the City of Daphne in accordance with the CGP 

established herewithin. The CGP shall not apply to contributions and requests for contributions 

for memberships, dues, or contributions to entities whose efforts provide direct revenue to the 

City of Daphne.  The City Council and Mayor shall jointly decide which entities must enter the 

CGP and which entities qualify under the aforementioned membership/dues/contributions 

exception to the CGP. 

 

 SECTION 4.  FUNDING CATEGORIES 

 

  The City has determined that there are classifications of activities that serve a 

Public Purpose and that benefit the citizens of the City of Daphne.  These classifications include 

but are not limited to education, arts, culture, community beautification, environmental 

awareness, community heritage, supporting youth and seniors, tourism and economic 

development.  

 

 SECTION 5.  FUNDING LIMITIONS 

 

  The CGP has an annual maximum budget of one half of one percent (0.5%) of 

Budgeted Revenues for the General Fund.  Annual contributions shall be limited to a maximum 

of five thousand dollars ($5,000) per entity (hereinafter “Grant Cap”)   

 

 

 SECTION 6.  APPLICATION PROCESS 

 

  The City will create an approved Community Grant Application Form.  The 

current version of the Community Grant Application Form is herein attached as an example but 

is not the definitive form.  The form may be altered periodically by the Mayor or his designee.  

This Form will be the only manner in which a request for CGP funds will be entertained.  The 

Application Form will specifically require that the applicant submit the organization’s most 

recent audited financial statements. In the event that the organization does not have their 

financial statements audited, the most recent non-audited statements may satisfy the submission 

requirement. The Mayor has certain obligations and duties regarding the budget.  Due to these 

obligations the Mayor will determine the deadline for submissions for the next fiscal year.  Said 

deadline may appear on the Community Grant Form and/or by contacting City Hall.   

  

  Application forms will be available upon request from the City Clerk’s office.   

 

  

 SECTION 7.  SCHOOLS 

 

The schools within the city limits of Daphne will not be funded directly and 

instead may only be provided funding through the Supporting Educational Enrichment in 

Daphne’s Schools (hereinafter “SEEDS”).  The maximum request from SEEDS will reflect the  

102 5/05/2014



ORDINANCE 2014- 16         ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR COMMUNITY GRANTS         Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Contribution Cap for each of the participating schools within the Daphne city limits in addition 

to SEEDS individually each fiscal year.  Therefore SEEDS, and by extension the public schools, 

are limited to the number of participating schools plus one (SEEDS itself) multiplied by the 

Grant Cap. Thus the amount paid directly to SEEDS may exceed the Grant Cap, but the amount 

utilized by SEEDS individually and not as a pass through will not exceed the maximum.  Any 

other pass-through arrangement shall be disfavored.  

 

  

 SECTION 8.  ANNUAL AUDIT 

 

  Should a participant in the CGP receive funds, the City reserves the right to 

inspect and audit any and all expenditures related to the CGP funds.  If the CGP participant is 

non-cooperative or cannot provide satisfactory back up documentation, their eligibility for future 

CGP funds will be suspended indefinitely.  

 

 SECTION 9.  MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS 

 

  It shall be the duty of every person/entity receiving CGP funds to keep and 

preserve suitable records of the use of said funds.  Such records shall be kept and preserved for a 

period of three (3) years and shall be open for examination at any time by the duly authorized 

representative of the City. 

 

 SECTION 10.  SEVERABILITY 

 

  If any section, subsection, clause, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be held 

to be invalid or unconstitutional in a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding or holding 

shall not affect any other section, subsection, clause, provision or part of this Ordinance which is 

in itself and of itself valid and constitutional. 

 

 SECTION 11. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

   

 SECTION 12. INFORMATION MAY NOT BE DIVULGED 

 

  It shall be unlawful for any person connected with the administration of this 

Ordinance to divulge any information obtained by him/her in the course of inspection and 

examination of the books of account, invoices, bank statements, sales tax records, state and 

federal income tax records, or other reports and memoranda or the taxpayer made pursuant to the 

provisions hereof, except to the Mayor, the City Council, the City Attorney, the City Finance 

Director, or their agents or representative connected with the administration of this Code, or 

pursuant to court proceedings or process. 

 

  

103 5/05/2014



ORDINANCE 2014- 16         ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR COMMUNITY GRANTS         Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF _______________, 2014. 
 

 

 CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 _________________________________                                             

       DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________                                                                     

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

  

 

 

 

 

   

104 5/05/2014



 

   

 
Contact: Mike Hinson 
mhinson@daphneal.com  
City of Daphne, AL 
P.O. Box 400 
Daphne, AL  36526 
(251) 621-9000 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY GRANT APPLICATION 
 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Agency Name 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Executive Director 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact Person 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address 

 

 

__________________________________________                              ____________________________________________________ 

Phone Number            Email Address 

 

 

              Community Grant Amount Requested:          __________________________________________ 

 

 

       Prior Year Amount Requested:     __________________________________________ 

 

 

        Prior Year Amount Awarded:          __________________________________________ 

 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Please Include the following required documentation: 

 

1. Grant Programs 

Please compile a summary that specifies how grant funds will be used to better serve the community and the City of Daphne 
 

2. Requests made to other government agencies 

Please list all requests made to other cities or governmental agencies and the amounts requested 
 

3. Board of Directors 

Include all Board Members contact information including email addresses and place of employment.  Also please include a copy of the board meeting 
minutes that authorizes the request for grant funds 

 

4. Agency Staff/Administration 

Please list all individuals associated with the grant application including email addresses and phone numbers 

 

5. Current Audited Financial Statements 

Please include the latest audited Financial Statements 

 

6. E-Verify & Tax Documentation  

Please provide proof of enrollment in the E-Verify system & complete the W-9 form 

 

105 5/05/2014

mailto:mhinson@daphneal.com


ORDINANCE 2014-20  
 
 

Recreation HVAC Upgrade 
 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 
Budget on September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, monies were appropriated in the amount of $14,000 in the FY2014 
Budget to purchase a new Air Conditioner for the Recreation Facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, after a recent evaluation of the HVAC system it was found that 
additional upgrades in the amount of $21,625 are needed to keep the HVAC 
system functional for Recreational activities. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of  $21,625  from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget for a Recreation 
HVAC Upgrade total project cost of $35,625. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2014. 
 
                          
    

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Dane Haygood. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 
 

106 5/05/2014



107 5/05/2014



108 5/05/2014



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE 2014-21 

 
CANCELLATION OF:  WEBSITE INTEGRATION FOR ANIMAL 

SHELTER & LIBRARY DONATIONS AND CLOSE CREDIT CARD 

DONATION BANK ACCOUNT 
 
WHEREAS,  Ordinance  2012-37 was  approved  and  adopted  on June 6, 2012 to 
appropriate $1,970 set up websites for acceptance of donation via credit 
card and a special bank account was set up for these collections ; and 

 
WHEREAS,  $500 was transferred from the General Fund to open the new bank 
account; and 

 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the setup of this online donation process and the setup of the 
bank account no donations have been received; and 

 
WHEREAS, fees in the amount of $523 have been charged for this website integration 
link in addition to the $1,970 set up fee; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City to 

c lose th is websi te  in tegrat ion and bank account ; and 
 

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE IT  ORDAINED  by the City Council of Daphne, Alabama that 
the website integration for online donations be removed and the Credit Card Donation 
bank account be closed. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED  BY THE MAYOR  & CITY COUNCIL  OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE,  ALABAMA, THIS              DAY OF ______________________, 2014. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 
 
 

REBECCA A. HAYES, 

CITY CLERK 

DANE HAYGOOD, 

MAYOR 

 
 

 
71 

109 5/05/2014



ORDINANCE 2014-22 

 

An Ordinance Appropriating Funds for Hazardous Weather / Emergency Duty Pay  

during the January 2014 Ice Storm 

 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget on September 

23, 2013; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City Council has 

determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the 

Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, an ice storm in January created a hazardous weather situation and safety issues for 

citizens and businesses in the City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, this ice storm required certain City personnel to respond to the emergency situation 

creating an additional personnel cost of $37,788; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne has approved Ordinance 2014-15 which 

revised Sections 9.1, 9.10 and 10.6 of the City of Daphne Employee Handbook addressing 

hazardous weather / emergency duty pay for non-exempt employees; and  

 

WHEREAS, this policy will be applied retroactively to Public Safety employees pay affected by 

the January 2014 ice storms requiring an estimated additional appropriation amount of $17,212. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

that the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget is hereby amended to include a total General Fund appropriation 

not to exceed $55,000  (PPD 2-12-14-$37,788 + $17,212) for the purpose of retroactive pay for 

employees affected by the January 2014 ice storms. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, this   ____     day of  ______________    , 2014. 

 

 

             

_________________________________ 

                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

           

 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

 

 

110 5/05/2014


	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes - April 21
	Council Minutes - April 25  - Emergency Special Called Minutes
	Proclamations
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes (2)
	Report of Special Boards
	BZA Minutes
	IDB Minutes - April 28
	Planning Commissin Mintues
	Utility Board Minutes - February 5
	Utility Minutes - February 26
	Utility Minutes - March 26
	Report of Officers
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2014-19 - RES - ConcretePipe
	2014-20 - RES - PlasticPipe
	2014-21 - RES - RockMaterial
	2014-15 - ORD - Amend EHB - Sections 9 1 9 10 and 10 6 - Hazardous weather and emergency leave
	2014-16 - ORD - Community Grant Program Ordinance CGP (2)
	Backup to 2014-16 -ORD - COMMUNITY GRANT FORM
	2014-20 - ORD - Recreation HVAC Upgrade
	Backup to 2014-20 - ORD - Rec HVAC
	2014-21 - ORD - Animal Shelter-Library Credit Cd Donation Account Cancellation
	2014-22 - ORD - Emergency Duty Pay per new policy Ord 2014-15



